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SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
‘For the financial year ending 30 June 2021

KEY COMPANY INFORMATION

Sunset Hotel Limited (“SHL”, “The Company™) was incorporated under the Kenya Companies Act
(Cap 486) in 1976. The shareholders of SHL are Tourism Finance Corporation (TFC, formerly
Kenya Tourist Development Corporation (KTDC) and Kisumu County (formerly Kisumu Municipal
Council). TFC is the majority shareholder in SHL with a direct controlling stake of 95.4% shares
with Kisumu County shareholding of 4.6%. TFC shareholding has since been transferred to Kenya
Development Corporation (KDC) effective 2™ July 2021 vial Legal Notice No.113 pursuant to the
Kenya Development Corporation Limited vesting order, 2021 published by the Cabinet Secretary
for National Planning. From the management perspective, SHL is classified as a Commercial State
Corporation by virtue of being a subsidiary of TFC. The shareholders through the Directors are

""""""""

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is operation of the hotel facility mainly focusing on
provision of accommodation and conference facilities.

Our Vision
To be the preferred choice for customers positioned to providing personalized, diversified and
exceptional service.

+ Our Mission :
To continuously create value in every encounter with our customers, owners and associates as
- we provide a choice of excellent hospitality products that offer good value for money while

" assuring-a good return-to sharcholders and inspiration to employees through sustainable use of

environmental resources and corporate social responsibility.

Directors
1. Mr.Odongo Okeyo Director Chairperson _ _
2. Prof. Peter Anyang Nyong’o | Director H.E the Governor -Kisumu County
3. Ms. Judith Kerich Director Director TFC
4. Mr. Abraham Koech Director Representative, National Treasury
5 Mr. Jonah T. Orumoi Director Managing Director TFC
6. | Mr. Peter Chemwile Director Director TFC :
Corporate secretary Registered Office
Mr. John Karia Sunset Hotel Limited Aput Lane,
Kenya Development Corporation Ltd Impala walk P. O. Box 215 - 40100
Uchumi House, 17" Floor Kisumu Kenya
P O Box 12665-00100 Tel. (254)057-2023482,2021490
Nairobi Email: info@sunsethotel.co.ke

Email: info@kde.go ke Website:www.sunsethotel.co.ke
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Corporate Headquarters
Kenya Development Corporation

Uchumi House, l?m Floor
Agha Khan Walk

P O Box 12665-00100
Mairobi

Corporate Contacts
Telephone: +254 20 2229213
E-Mail: info@kdc.goke
Website:www kdc.go ke

Corporate Bankers

1. National Bank of Kenya Limited
Oginga Odinga Street
P.O Box 1152-40100
Kisumu

2. Kenya Commercial Bank
Oginga Odinga Street
P.O Box 17-40100
Kisumu

Independent Auditors

Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GOP 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Advisers

1. The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTOR

ACADEMIC
QUALIFICATIONS

WORK EXPERIENCE

Prof. Peter A.n};:g:ﬂg
Nyong’o

PhID Political Science,
University of Chicago, USA.

M.A Political Economy,
University of Chicago, USA.

Degree in Political Science,
University of Chicago, USA.

BA. Political Science &
Philosophy; 1* Class Honors,
Makerere University, Uganda.

Prof . Peter Anyang Nyongo is the current
Governor of Kisumu County. He has vast
experience spanning over 30 years in the
political field. He was previously the
Senator of Kisumu County. He was the
Minister of Medical Services from the
year 2008 to 2013 and Member of
Parhiament for Kisumu Rural from 2003
to 2013.

He was nominated to parliament from
1998-2002 afier having been elected o |
parliament from 1993-1997 representing |
Kisumu Rural. He was also the very able
minister of Planning and National
Development from 2003 to 2005.
Between the year 1977 and 1981, before
joining the political arena, Prof. worked
as the Head of Programs of African
Academy of Sciences, Associate
Professor of University of Addis Ababa,
Ethiopia, Visiting Research Officer of EI
Colegio De Mexico and as a Lecturer and
Senior Lecturer at University of Nairobi.

Orumoi. T. Jonah

TR

Mr. Orumoi holds a Master of
Science in Finance and
Investment (Merit) from
Queen Mary University of
London, UK and is FACCA
qualified. He is a graduate of
BA (Hons) in Accounting &
Finance of the Cast [.ondon
University, UK.

Mr. Orumoi is the Managing Director of
Tourism Finance Corporation and was
previously the Head of Finance & ICT at
the Kenya Tourism Board. He has
previously worked as Finance & Leasing
Contracts Manager/ acting Head of
Procurement at G4S and as a Senior
Principal Finance Officer, Thurrock
Council, UK.
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Mark Odongo Okeyo
(Chairperson)

Court of Kenya with over thirty-one (31)
years' experience in the Insurance sector
and is a Life Member of the Instite of
Certified Secretanes. He previously Senior
Manager, Strategy and Business
Development at Kenya Rensurance
Company Limited during which period he
led the team and was in charge of the
process that privatized Kenya Reinsurance
Corporation. He is currently the Managing
Partmer of Odongo Okeyo& Co. Advocates
and a Director at the CDF Board and of
Tounism Finance Corporation.

Mr. Okeyo has a track record of service to
the country and the local society and was the
Lead Legal adviser for the CDE.Board on
the re-alignment of Act to the Constitution
2010, he chaired and led the CDF Board
Management and Parliamentary Committee
on the re-drafting of"the CDF Act 2013 and
has been involved in the water sector since
2004 by oproviding water to local
communities  and promoting  free
environment and consulting for
Transparency International on  Water
Governance issues. Mr. Okeyo also serves
as a Board Member of Migon Boys
Secondary School and a Patron of Kaolika
SDA Church Development - and
Construction Committee.

Mr. Okeyo is dedicated to professionalism |
and Corporate Governance and during his
career introduced Corporate Governance
in the Insurance sector, has been among
the team of consultants that assesses
companies on Corporate Governance for
the COG Award on behalf of Institute of
Certified Secretaries. He has also carried
out Civic Education and Governance on
run up to the General Elections and has
fought corruption consistently; both
privately and publicly.
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i1

Judith Kerich

IMs. Judith holds Master of
Business Administration
(MBA / Strategic
Management) & Master in
Public Policy Management
from Strathmore Business
School.

She also holds a Bachelor of
Commerce Degree (Human
Resources Option) from
Catholic University of Eastern
Africa (CUEA), HND Human
Resources Management from
Institute of Human Resource
Management, Certificate in
Project Managemeni from
Georgetown University
Washington DC, Certificate in
Public Policy from New York
University USA,

Diploma in Airport Operations
from Airports Council
International and Global
Strategy from IESE Business
School Spain.

She is the Deputy Project Coordinator for
World Bank Financed projects in the
Transport Sector in Kenya with wvalue
added board-level experience  and
strategic  decision-making  expertise,
notably at the National Transponn &
Safety Authority and Kenya Airports
Authority. ,

She has vast wealth of experience having
previously . worked as the Director
Corporate Support Services - National
Transport & Safety Authority, Kenya .She
also worked as the Manager Human
Resource Services (Senior HR
Management) at Kenya  Airporis
Authority prior to which she had worked
as Human Resources Officer at Jomo
Kenyatta International Airport (KAA) as
well as Assistant Corporate Management
Representative.

Earlier on she had worked as the
Executive Assistant to ACI President
(Africa Region) - Airports Council
International ~ (Africa  Region) and
Executive / Personal Assistant to General
Manager / Finance Director — Siginon
Freight

Vi
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Company Secretary

Mr. John holds a Master
degree in Law (LLM) from the
University of Exeter (LJK). a
Postgraduate Diploma in Law
from the Kenya School of Law
and a Bachelor of .aws degree
(I.1.B) from University of

Nairobi.

He is the Company Secretary. John is an
Advocate of the High Court of Kenya and
a Certified Secretary. He is an active
Member of the Law Society of Kenya, the
Institute of Certified Public Secretaries of
Kenya and an Associate Member of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (Kenya
Branch).

John is a seasoned legal and governance
professional wide and wvaned
experience the financial
services industry and has previously
worked for Kenindia Assurance Co. Lid
and the Laptrust/CPF Group where he

with

gained in

was the Legal Services Manager.

&

Abraham Kipkorir Koech

Mr Koech holds an MBA in
Strategic Management from
Jomo Kenya University of .
Agriculture and Technology
(JKUAT) and B.A Hons,
Upper Second from University
of Nairobi

Mr Koech has immense wealth of
Policy and Financial
Analysis, Project Management, Strategic
Management, Corporate Governance and
Quality Management Sysiems-

experience in

He has previously represented  the
MNational Treasury as an Alternate
Director in the Boards of various State |
Corporations.

He previously worked as AM/ Strategy
and Change, Postbank after rising through
the ranks.

Vil
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Accountant

Holds a Bachelor of
Commerce (B.com.)
Finance, CPA (K),
Diploma in
Accounting

Cver 15 years’
experience

Risper Chichole
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of my fellow
Board Members, the
Management and mysell
I hereby present to you
Financial Statements of
Sunset Hotel Ltd for the

Financial Year

2020/2021.

I am pleased to report that despite the
turbulence witnessed in the industry during
the year as a resull of the Cowid-19
pandemic, the hotel defied all odds and
posted a relatively impressive performance
for the first time in a very long time. For a
number of years the performance of the Hotel
has been wanting; with the poor performance
being attributable to a number of factors inter
alia the downturn of the tourism sector 1n the
country, the state of the facility and the
increase in the number of high end facilities
within Kisumu County that provided stiff
competition for the hotel.

In the Year under review the hotel posted a
profit of Kshs. 10.08 Million against the
expected Profit of Kshs. 1.38 Million; thus
slightly reducing the accumulated losses to
Kshs. 172.97 Million.

It is apparent that the restructuring measures
previously taken by the board are starting to
bear fruit, by the continued
accumulation of losses. Despite the evident
improvement it is not lost to the board the

stemming

need to strategically reposition the hotel. The
hotel's improvement on the backdrop of the
harsh environment under which it operated
during the period serves to underscore the
huge potential that this hotel
possesses. With continued concerted efforts,
the hotel should be able to become self-
sufficient as we continue to explore means
and ways of putting it back on track and
forestalling the accumulation of further losses
and safeguarding the investment of the
shareholders.

icomc

The current Board has shown a lot of
poodwill and | believe this will go a long way
in assisting the hotel in making the
revolutionary change required to salvage 1t as
it can already be seen. [ would like to record
my sincere gratitude to the Board for their
invaluable  support, commitment and
dedication which has helped steer the hotel’s
strategic thinking to new altitudes.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Management & Staff T would like to express
my sincere gratitude to our customers for
their patronage over the Years and look
forward to their continued s rt in future.
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REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

On behalf of management of
Sunset Hotel Limited, | am
pleased to present to you the
Annual Report and
Financial Statements of the
company for the year ended
30™ June 2021.

Kisumu County has in the resent past experienced
a serious upsurge of new hotels that have created
a serious scramble for clients coming to the
region. This has indeed brought about serious

% competition that is certainly good for the industry.
* " On the other hand, this entry of new hotels has

‘disadvantaged’ the old hotels and has created a
challenge that the oid hotels must quickly address
and deal with in order 1o remain competitive and
relevant. Apparently, this is the fate- that has
befallen Sunset Hotel Kisumnu.

The hotel 1s however advantaged in the sensé that
it has reasonably built a name over the years and
is strategically located and that this must be used
to the benefitof the hotel.

During the year 2021, the hotel achieved a net
turnover of Kshs 50 million (2020: Kshs 18
million) representing an increase of 178 % and a
profit of Kshs. 10.08 million (2020: Kshs -9.9
million) thus 201% increase. This was partly
occasioned by the reduction of staff costs after
the redundancy exercise the previous year. The
hotel was also identified and used as a Covid-19
quarantine Centre for the County medical
personnel at the initial stages of the pandemic.

Of the reported sales, Kshs.10 million was
generated from the use of the hotel as a
quarantine Centre thus going a long way in
helping the hotel to remain a float.

The management has for a longtime now been
pursuing the refurbishment agenda with the
board and it remains hopeful that the
agenda will be actualized sooner than later in
order to help reclaim the hotel’s glory. It is
envisaged that more efforts will be directed
towards increasing operational efficiency and
implementing strategies such as increasing
accommodation capacity, marketing,
advertising and promotions that are directed
towards 'securing more business.

Finally, on behalf of management and staff of
Sunset Hotel Ltd. 1 wish to express. our

- sincere appreciation to the Board of directors

for their committed support during the year
ended 30" June 2021. 1 equally wish to
express my gratitude to the shareholders;
National Government and. the County
Government of Kisumu, customers and other
valuable stakehdlders for their support and we
indeed look forward to a‘better future.

Risper Chichole
Ag. General Manager
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STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY
20202021

Sunset Hotel has four main strategic issues within the current Strategic Plan for the FY 2019- FY
2023. These strategic 1ssues are as follows:

1. Reinforcement of trust and recognition for Sunset Hotel in the industry

2. Increasing sales revenue,

3, Reinvestment and payment of dividends to shareholders

4. Human Resource Development and Management

Sunset Hotel develops its annual work plans based on the above four Issues. Assessment of the
Board’s performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The hotel partly

achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2020/2021 period for its strategic issues, as indicated

in below:
'ﬁalegic o Objective Key [ Activities Achievements
Pillar/Theme/lssues Performance
Indicators
Reinforcement of trust To reinforce Customer Renovation  and A
and recognition for the hotel's loyalty and refurhishing af | Process of sourcing
Sunset Hetel in the position in the | maximized hotel  rooms | to | for refurbishment
industry markel as a profits modern standards. | funds initiated and in
recognized Rebranding the | ProOgress
and trusted hotel,
hatel implement use of
ICT in- hotel’
recognition.  and
A image - -
improvement.
Increasing sales To achieve a Increased sales Diversification of | |
TEVENUE, 20% growth and patronage services and | Révenue target
rate in sales ' products. surpassed by 30%
for the next 5 Focus on | while profit was over
years in order conference tourism | and above the budget
lo enhance 1o attain average | by 630%.
and sustain space  occupancy
financial of 75%.
resqurces for Investment in
Sunset Hotel. cottages and tents
Implement proper
financial  control
systers

%1
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=

Continual
improvement  of
services, products

and environment
Pay debts on time
Mobilize resources
fromm
SOUrces

external

Improve efficiency

sufficient 1o

of services and

and effectiveness

af resource

utilization.
Reinvestment and To achieve a Declaration of i) Renogvation o
payment of dividends to | 20% growth dividends and and Projects 1o improve
shareholders rate in the plough backs refurbishment | the hotel from

levels of of the property | intermally generated

e profits i Diversification | funds ear marked for

implementation as

yield retums | products outsourced funds are
o iii) Reduction of | awaited
. shareholders operating
2 cOsts
) iv) Focus on
quality service
and customers
satisfactian
Human Resource | To anract, Improved i Developing a
Development and | develop and Customer Human Developed the
Management retain service, Resource relevant HR
competent and | Increased Manual Instruments for
motivated productivity i) Upgrading approval
staff skills in  the
workforce
iii) Improving the
work
environment
iv) Rationalizing
staff capacity

®11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporate Governance comprises the rules, practices and processes by which the company is
directed and controlled. It also provides the framework for attaining the company’s objectives. The
Board of Directors has embraced Governance as the mode of engagement and interaction between

the Cnrparminn‘ﬁ' Board, Management, Stakeholders and Regulators for the sustainable benefit of
the hotel.

Sunset Hotel Lid is commitied to realizing profits and growth while complying with all legal
Requirements and maintaining business ethics. The above are realized through:

a) Board of Directors

The Board provides leadership of the Company with the framework that upholds the core values
underpinning good Corporate Governance.

The board’s duties and responsibilities include;
:

e Setting the Strategic Direction of the hotel and putting in place appropriate policies, systems

and structures for their successful implementation; ) :
e [Establishing and maintaining the hotel’s overall systems of planning, accounting and internal 1
controls that facilitate prudent risk management, £
Setting policy guidelines for management and ensuring competent management of the business
including selection, supervision, and remuneration of Senior Management
« Ensuring the business of the hotel is conducted in compliance with relevant laws and

regulations

« Monitoring the hotel’s performance and reporting this to the shareholders.

There exists a formal procedure to the appointment of directors. Key elements such a conflict of
interests and multiple directorships are considered during this exercise. Towards the end, the
company has consistently formulated successive 5 years strategic plan.

b) Board Composition
The Board believes that to achieve good corporate governance, there is need for strong presence of
the non- executive directors in the Board. During the year under review, the Board had six Directors

of all whom were non-executive Directors. The General Manager attended the Board meetings in his
capacity as General Manager.

%1
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The Board Chairman has the overall responsibility of leading the Board. He oversees the operations and
effectiveness of the Board and ensures that the Boards’ discussions are conducted in a manner that
promaotes open participation.

The Directors who held office during the year under review is as listed under the Board of Directors;
afore section in this report.

The Corporation Secretary being the custodian of corporate governance within the entity works closely
with the Board and the Hotels Managerent. In this regard, the Corporation Secretary facilitates all
Directors to have full and timely access to all relevant information, ensures that the correct board
procedures are followed and advises the Board on all Corporate Governance matters and prevailing
statutory requirements.

¢) Board Meetings

The Board schedule of meetings is prepared annually in advance. The Board holds its regular
meetings al least once every three (3) months and special meetings may be called when necessary.

During the vear, The board held a total of five (5) meetings; two (2) special and three (3) regular
board meetings !:"e:spcciively. ]

The time, date, venue and Agenda of the meeting are communicated in advance. Attendance of the
Board Memberé®to full Board meeting, Special Board meeting over the year is set as below:

. S : Regular Special Total
Name Details
' Meeting | Meeting Meetings

_1___Achie Alai Alternate to the Governor 2 2 4

2 | John Karia Company Secretary 2 2 4
i Jonah gnf::rlc_ri_ . MD TFC 2 2

4 | Judith Kerich Director 1 I
5 | George Okongo - | Altemnate to the Governor "T 1 2

6 | Odongo Okeyo Director 3 2 5

7 | Peter Chemwile Director _ 2 2

& | Frank Onyange Alternate to MD - TFC 2 2

9 | Kenneth Otieno Alternate to the Governor 1 ]

10 | Abraham Koech Representative-Treasury 3 3

11 | Anjelita Wamuyu gitcint:;;-(:ompany o ]

| 12 | John Mukuna Altemnate to MD - TFC 1 1

X1V
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d) Company Policy on Directors Remuneration
Company Directors are entitled to sitting allowances for each Board Meeting. Directors are entitled 10
transport and meal allowance when attending Board Meetings outside their regular areas of residence.

These are payable at the following rates:-

Title Directors Sitting | Lunch Air ticket | Subsistence
Allowance Per ‘Allowance per director Claim
Sitting, Per Sitting
Board Chairman 20,000 2.000 18,200
‘ As per travel _
_Direcmrs 20,000 2.000 18,200 j

¢) General Terms of Service

Directors serve a 3 years term service from the date they are appointed into office. They are eligible for
re-appointment for one second term of 3 years.

f) Conflict of Interest . -

The Board Members are required to make disclosures of any transaction in which they have intergst and

which would constitute a conflict of interest and abstain from voting when such matters are being ™
considered.

v
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Directors Remuneration Paid During the Year ended June 2021

Paid_.

. Accrued Tatal
Mo, MName Details | Allowances | Allowances Allowances
I (Kshs.) (Kshs.) (Kshs.)

I | Odonga Okeyo Director 1 00,000 100,000

2 | Achie Alai Alternate to the Guv.rernar_“ 80,000 80,000

3 | Judith Kerich Director 20,000 20,000

4 | Peter Chemwile | Director 40,000 40,000

& | Frank Onyango Alternate to MD - TFC 40,000 40,000

g | Jonah Orumoi MD TFC 40,000 40,000

9 | Kenneth Otieno Alternate to the Governor 20,000 20,000

10 | Abraham Koech Representative-Treasury 60,000 60,000

11 | George Okongo Alternate to the Governar 40,000 40,000

12 | John Mukuna Alternate to MD - TFC 20,000 20,000

J S.Totals 560,000 . 46“,0@0

: T

E:?rﬁeni{et{t?!:inickel&SubsistancEj EAB'EEB |

ARENN | G.Totals ! -,rm.g:'g'g

Directors Remuneration Paid During the Year ended June 2020 S
;g. Paid Accrued Total

Mo, Name Details Allowances | Allowances Allowances
{Kshs.) (Kshs.) {Kshs.) 3

| | Frankline Mdii Director 20,000 20,000

2 | Achie Alai Alternate to the Governar 40,000 40,000 80,000

3 | Judith Kerich Director(Chairman) 60,000 60,000

4 | ¥unis [brahim Director 40,000 40,000

5 | Merry Achar Alternate to the Governor 20,000 20,000

6 | Patricia Mjambi | Altermate to MD - TFC B 20,000 20,000

7 | Janah Orumaon MD TFC 80,000 80,000

& | David lakaiti PS Representative 60,000 60,000

g | Jonah Kinama PS Representative 40,000 40,000

10 | George Okongo Alternate to the Governor 20,000 20,000

Totals 380,000 60,000 440,000

Expenses{Meals, Refreshments & Airticket) 55,265

| G.Totals 495,265

X1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operational and Financial Performance

The day to day running of the business of Sunset Hotel Lid is delegated by the Board 1o the Hotel
General manager who implements Board decisions in a manner that adds value to the hotel.

a) Revenue/Profitability

During the year under review, the hotel achieved a net turnover of Kshs 50 million against a budget
of Kshs 38 million. This represented a favorable variance of 30%. Net profit stood at Kshs. 10.08
million against the projected profit of Kshs.1.38 million as shown below. This was a great
improvement compared to the previous years' partly due to the support from the County Government

of Kisumu which used the hotel as a quarantine Centre for medical staff for six months with a total
of Kshs. 10 million being generated therefrom.

Particulars Budgeted | Actuals Variance :{" age Remark
arnancce

B o 20202021 | 20202021 | 2020-2021 | 2020-2021

Revenue Kshs | Kshs Kshs Kshs 1T

Sales 38,731,955 | 50,159,565 | 11,427,610 30% | F

Other Income ESias : - e

Total Revenues | 38,731,955 | 50,159,565 | 11,427,610 30% | F

[ Costinrasie | 8.050.782 | 10,550,904 | -2.500,122 3%(u

Gross Profit 30,681,173 | 39,608,661 | 8,927,488 20% | F

EXPENSES T

Administration Costs .2]..-225,6159 18,430,948 | 2,794,721 13% _l_

E‘;';:E snrsoribution 575922 | 207963 | 367,959 64% | F

Depreciation Costs 2,348,720 | 2,046,329 | 302,391 13% | F

Total Operating expenses | 24,150,311 | 20,685,240 | 3,465,071 14% | F

Operating Profit/(Loss) 6,530,862 | 18,923,421 | 12,558,559 190% | F

Finance Costs ' 5,150,384 | 8,836,187 | -3,685,803 72% | U

LCu ) hefore 1,380,478 | 10,087,234 | 8,706,756 630% | F

Income tax expenses ) _ _ =

{(credit) o

et Loofit A Loss) after 1,380,478 | 10,087,234 | 8,706,756 630% | F

Vil
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Revenue center’s performance:
The Hotel’s current amenities include; 50 standard rooms with 100 bed capacity, restaurant, lounge
bar, pool bar, swimming pool and conference facilities. The respective centers performed as below:

Revenue Centre Amount
Accommodation 10,416,715 | 1) Food Residents -Food sales from resident/in-house guests
Food - Residents 8.786.831
Food - Casuals 21,153,918 2)Food Casuals-Food sales from seminars and walk-in clients
Drinks - | 6,858,748
Tobacco 28,428 | 3)Other Income-This includes revenue from hall hire,
Laundry 39,079 stationery, video/photo session, ground hire etc
Swimming Pool 1,400,629
Other Income 1,475,217
Total 50,159,565

REVENUE CENTRES

Swimming Pool

3%
Other Income
Laundry a9
. 0%
i Tebacco — ——————

B inegs
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Room and bed occupancy for the period was as below:

v Budget |

vt Actual Budgeted cﬂi:g by Achieved |
Room Occupancy % 37% 15% 100% 247%
Bed Occupancy % 21% 11% 100% 191%
Wumber of Rooms Occupied 6,757 2,672 13700 253%
Mumber of Beds Occupied(Guests) 7.497 4,099 27.400 183%
Average Rate - Room 1,542 3,506 4,000 44%
jveraga Rate - Bed 1,389 2,286 s 2,000 61%

The Hotel’s key strength is its strategic location and ownership structure with the major challenges
being its poor state of facility, high cost of operations and increased competition. The visible decline
in sales over the years is due to stiff competition which has hit the Hotel hard thus calling for tough
decisions to be made for the hotel to remain a float.

However, the management strongly believes that the Hotel has immense potential which if tapped
through carefully thought out turn around strategies will certainly reclaim the Hotel's fast fading
glory; this is already underway with discussions between the management,. the
directors/shareholders regarding the same having commenced. 4

_ As one of the turnaround strategies, the hotel declared all staff redundant in May 2019 and paid off
their dues with funds borrowed from the shareholders. This certainly eased the burden of salaries on
the hotel and it was expected that going forward the hotel would be able to breakeven.
Unfortunately, after the redundancy exercise, the hotel suffered bad publicity with the exercise
being construed to mean the hotel had closed down. This saw the hotel’s revenue shrink further as
customers stayed away. The hotel endeavored to counter the bad publicity and the efforts had
started to bear fruits when unfortunately Covid-19 pandemic hit us from March, the hotel’s
performance was further affected. The hotel was identified as a quarantine Centre for the Kisumu
County Medical staff which helped the hotel to remain a float during the period. The hotel has since
then endeavored to build on the gains made during that period to continually improve its
performance despite a myriad of challenges. The efforts paid off and indeed saw the hotel’s
performance improve greatly- in the year under review with the hotel reporting some profit after a
long period of loss making.

b) Administration Costs
The overall vote was within the budget with a favorable variance of 14%.

¢) Finance Costs
Xix
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This relates to Interest on loans disbursed to the hotel by TFC at an interest rate of 11%. The
increment of the expense was due to the loan of Kshs.30M disbursed to the hotel in 2019 for settling
staff redundancy costs after the lapse of the ane year moratorium in June 2020.

d) Depreciation
Most of the Hotel’s assets are fully ‘depreciated and need to be revalued. 1t had been hoped that

some of them would be replaced in the current financial year. However, that is yet to be effected
thus the vanance.,

¢) Liquidity Position

As a result of the above adverse revenue variance and general dismal performance over time, the
Hotel has continued to default on meeting its obligations as and when they fall due. However, with
the restructuring measures having been put in place, the liquidity position of the hotel has improved

and the hotel is now able to meet its current obligations while offsetting the previous outstanding
liabilities.

1) Compliance with Statutory Requirements -
Sunset Hotel is fully compliant with ail the relevant statutory requirements.. The required returms are
filed as and when due. However, the hotel has in the past faced serious financial constraints which
made the hotel 1o lag behind on making remittances to the relevant organs €.g KRA and NSSF. The
hotel has since cleared the NSSF principal arrears save for the penalty which it hopes to obtain some
waiver. The hotel has also engaged KRA and agreed on a payment plan for'the tax arrears.. . .

g) Key Projects and Investment Decisions Implemented by the Entity
Due to the current financial situation; the hotel has no ongoing pTDjeCT_S but hﬂpes to ‘injtiate when
the cash flows allow.

-h) Financial Probity and Serious Governance : oty sl v
There are no major financial improbity reported by internal audlt extema] audlt or other n&tmnal
government agencies providing oversight, neither are there serious governance issues among the
board or member of the board and top management including conflict of interest.

i) - Five year performance

The hotel’s performance has been on a downward trend due to its dilapidated state, having been
built 40 years ago and with no meaningful refurbishment having taken place. The hotel is in dire
need of a facelift in order to bring back its lost glory. As aforementioned, the hotel's potential
cannot be underestimated.

The hotel’s comparative performance over the last five years is as follows:
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| "Year | Revenue Profit

T 50,159,565 . 10,087,234
2020, 18.546.294 (9,945,386)
2019 36,011,363 (33,749,122)
2018 34.089.815 (21,901,756)
2017 42,242 826 (27,700,389)
2016 J_ 59,062,307 | (12,025,168)

The above performance is graphically shown as below:
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILTY REPORTING

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), Environmental Conservation and Sustainability means
corporate culture for Sunset Hotel, a culture which holds the Company s responsibility not only for
making profit, but also for the conditions under which profits are made. Finding a balance between
financial successes, social responsibility and protecting the environment is a fundamental approach
that lies at the heart of Sunset Hotel corporate culture and is reflected in our corporate values.
Below is an outline of the organization’s policies and activities that promote sustainability.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

Sustainability is a key pillar of our company strategy and has always played a fundamental role
within our business. We continue to strive to combine a powerful business sense and a strong sense
of social responsibility towards our stakeholders which has over decades of existence been created,
managed and sustained through long-term relationships, marked by mutual respect and trust.

ii) Environmental performance

‘From Environmental perspective, our guiding principles and approach has contmu&d o evnlve n an
ethical manner through-various partnerships so as 1o widen our footprint with an increased emphasis
on quatity. value addition and visible measures of impact and success within the ecosystem and
- communities 1n“which we operate. The importance of an ever clean, green and healthy environment
! carinot be over-emphasised. The hotel collaborates with other partners e.g. Kenya Wildlife Services
o (KWS) who.are the. hotel’s immediate neighbours in conserving the envirenment. The- hotel boasts
of a wide variety-of indigenous. trees within its-premises thus playing a key role in conservation. The

hete! also has a proper wastle managemsnt poliey in place. ST

Interaction with Nature at Sunset Hotel
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iii) Employee welfare

The hotel has properly documented and approved Human resource instruments which guide all the
MR related ‘matters including hiring and staff relations. The HR Manual is the Primary Policy
document in Management of the Sunset Hotel Human Resource. The Manual acts as a reference

document for the Hotel, and forms the basis upon which the Hotel’s work culture and environment
develops.

It guides the Hotel and employees of the Hotel on matters of policy and practice. The Manual
incorporates provisions of relevant legislations which are applicable on matters of Human Resource
Management and Development and is largely aligned to the Constitution and Employment Act and
is periodically revised as and when necessary. The hotel is an equal opportunity employer. The
hatel is fully compliant with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA)

iv) Market place pruttites'r
a)  Responsible competition practice.

The hotel embraces best commercial practices, ethical and International standards in dealing
with stakeholders. :

Sunset hotel ensures responsible competition practices by operating within and ;’:i;]ti'vating a
corruption free environment, responsible political involvement, fair ::qrr'ipelilian_and respect
for competitors at all times. ' N
b) Responsible Supply chain and sﬁpplicr relations ) _
The hotel ensures faimess in all the procurement processes by adhering to the relevant
procurement regulations and endeavours 1o pay the suppliers within the stipulated timne
frames while maintaining clear, transparent, open communication channels and rriechanisms.
¢)  Responsible marketing and advertisement : g
* Sunset hotel at all times applies and maintains ethical marketing practices by ensunng 2
level playing ground and being sensitive to the competitors at all times as well as: n::rij&rat'ing
 within healthy marketing principles.: : - : ' b
d)  Product stewardship Pl - R
All undertakings of the hotel are geared towards customer satisfaction. The hotel

maintains positive communication with both the internal and external customers and has a

robust feedback mechanism in place. This ultimately safeguards consumer rights and
interests in the long run.

CpE
i

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Our Sustainable approach towards sourcing and production helps us to create value for a wide group
of stakeholders from farmers to community groups to customers. Sunset Hotel continues to give
priority to the local communities and farmers living around our areas of operation where possible so
as to ensure economic independence. The Hotel occasionally hires local performers to entertain
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guests through dance and music thus enhancing guest experience by exposing them to the diverse
range of local cultures and ethnic groups whilst economically empowering the local people. The
hotel is largely engaged in supporting education specifically by offering internships and attachment
to students and allowing the students to tour the facility as a way of gaining practical experience
especially for hospitality students.

Occasionally, the Hotel also supports some charitable causes and community imtiatives. These take
many forms: financial, supply of foodstuffs or clothing, hosting of community events. Due to

financial constraints, the hotel did not make any cash donations during the year but was able to
donate firewood to children’s home.

KKV
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statement for the year
ended June 30, 2021 which shows the state of Sunset Hotel Ltd affairs,

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company 1s provision of accommodation and conferencing
facilities.

Results
The results of the entity for the year ended June 30, 2021 are set out on pages 1- 4]

Dividend
Owing to the loss recorded in the year, the directors do not recommend payment of dividend.

Reserves

The Directors propose to carry forward the balance of accumulated losses amounting to
Kshs. 172,975,512

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year to date of this report are set out on
page 1v-vii in accordance with Regulation 2(b) of the Sunset Hotel Lid Anicles of Association.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Sunset Hotel Ltd in accordance with
Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.The Auditor General continues
in office in accordance with Section3$ of the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

John a

Company Secretary

Kenya Development Corporation
P O Box 42013-00100

Nairobi )

Dates:,.

XxXwv
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 ard section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
require the Board to prepare financial statements in respect of Sunset Hotel Limjted, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Hotel at the end of the financial year/period and the
operating results of the Hotel for that year/period. The Companies Act 2015 requires the directors to
ensure that the Hotel keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the

financial position of the Hotel. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Hotel.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Hotel’s financial staternents,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Hotel for and as at the end of the financial
year ended on June 30, 2021. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management policies and ensuring that these continue 1o be effective throughout the reporting period;
(11) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the entity; (n1) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are
free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the

~ Hotel; (v) selecting and applying appropriate -accounting policies; and (vi) making .accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors aceept respamsibility for the Hotel's financial’ staternents, ‘which have been
orepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
" esumates, jn conformity with International FinanciaI'RﬂpOrting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner
‘. required by the PFM Act and the. State Corporations Act. The Directors confirm that the Hotel’s
financial statements give a.true and fair view of the state of Hotel's transactions duning the financial .
year.ended June 30, 2021, and of the Hotel’s. financial position as at that date. The Directors further
- confirm the completeness of the. accounting records maintained for the Hotel, which have been relied

'+ uponan the preparation of the Hotel’s financial ‘statements zs well as the adequacy of the systems of
internal financial controi.

-Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Hotel will not remain a going -
* concern for at least the next twélve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

Sunset Hotel's financial statements were approved by the Board on U-f‘ \ Dq\ 2021 and
signed on its behalf by: X ;

Signature: Signature: -

. _45?" o N
Name: "P'F’['T-"Q q/'M(._A— Name: ﬂfUEU’J wﬁkg\b
Chairperson of the Board { Accounting Qfficer
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

felephone: +254-(20) 3214000 HEADQUARTERS
E-mail: info(@oagkenya.go.ke Anniversary Towers
Website: www.oagkenya.go ke Monrovia Street

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.Q. Box 30084-00100

; o MAIR
Enhancing Accountability AUREE!

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three paris of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunset Hotel Limited set out on
pages 1 to 42, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2021,

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2021



and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Sunset Hotel Limited as at 30 June, 2021, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act, 2015
and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Non-Disclosure of Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

The statement of financial position reflects current liabilities totalling to Kshs.132,761,243
which exceeds current assets totalling to Kshs.28,717,160 resulting to a negative working
capital of Kshs.104,044,083. This casts significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. However, this material uncertainty to continue as a going
concern has not been disclosed in the financial statements.

In the circumstances, the financial statements have been prepared on the assumption
that the Hotel will continue to receive financial support from the Government and its
creditors.

2. Unsupported Loans from the Tourism Finance Corporation

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects non-current liabilities in
respect of loans from Tourism Finance Corporation totalling to Kshs.89,314,135. Further,
the statements also reflects accrued loan principal of Kshs.42,873,481 and accrued loan
interest totalling to Kshs.46,440,654. However, a confirmation of the loan balances due
to Tourism Finance Corporation was not provided and the hotel has not been servicing
the loans resulting in the continued accumulation of interest.

In the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the loan balances due to
Tourism Finance Corporation of Kshs.89,314,135 could not be confirmed.

3. Missing Share Certificate

The statement of financial position reflects ordinary share capital amount of
Kshs.12,000,000 which comprise of ordinary share capital for Tourism Finance
Corporation and County Government of Kisumu of Kshs.11,450,000 and Kshs.550,000
respectively. However, no evidence to confirm the County Government's ownership was
provided for audit.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the vear ended 30 June, 2021
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In the circumstances, the ownership and accuracy of the share capital balance of
Kshs.550,000 could not be confirmed.

4, Long Outstanding Trade and Other Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other receivables balance of
Kshs.22,741,868 which is net of provisions for bad and doubtful receivables totalling to
Kshs.3,567,457 as disclosed in Note 16 (a) to the financial statements. Included in
balance are debts amounting to Kshs.23,452 218 owed by Government institutions.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and existence of trade and other receivables balance
of Kshs.22,741,868 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIls). | am independent of the Sunset Hotel Limited Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAIl and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.38,731,955 and Kshs.50,159,565 respectively
resulting to an over collection of Kshs.11,427,610 or 30% of the budget. Similarly, the
Hotel expended Kshs.20,685,240 against an approved budget of Kshs.24,150,311
resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshs.3,465,071 or 14% of the budget.

The under-performance affected the planned activities and may have impacted negatively
on service delivery to the public.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Report af the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the vear ended 30 June, 2021
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Basis for Conclusion

Failure to Remit Statutory Deduction

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.43,447,108 as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements. Included in the
amount is unremitted taxes totalling to Kshs.29,907,796 relating to Value Added Tax
(VAT), Pay As You Earn (PAYE) and Withholding taxes of Kshs.12,740,356,
Kshs.15,706,356 and Kshs.1,461,084 respectively. This is contrary to Section 37(1) of
the Income Tax Act Chapter 470 and Section 5(1) Part Il of the Value Added Tax Act,
2013 (Revised 2018) Further disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements is a
contingent liability of Kshs.33,512,049 arising from National Social Security Fund (NSSF)
penalties and Notice of Distress for outstanding tax arrears by Kenya Revenue Authority
(KRA) amounting to Kshs.28,980,240.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of my report, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
Understaffing

Examination of human resource records revealed existence of only one member of staff
who is employed on permanent and pensionable basis. Lack of sufficient employees is
contrary to the staff establishment and the hotel is operating below its full potential.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
As required by the Companies Act, 2015, | report based on my audit, that:

i. | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

ii. In my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Sunset Hotel
Limited, so far as appears from the examination of those records; and,

ii. The Company’s Financial Statements agree with the accounting records and
returns.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for
maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control, risk
management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hotel's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management is aware of the
intention to liquidate the Hotel or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Hotel's financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2021
5



of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Hotel's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise .prcfessional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concemn basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Hotel's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hotel to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hotel to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Nan%ﬁ

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

23 September, 2022

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND OTHERCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

REVENUES
Sales/ Tumaver

TOTAL REVENUES

Cost of Sales

GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration Costs
Selling and Distnbution Costs

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS)

Finance Costs

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
INCOME TAX EXPENSES/ (CREDIT)

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

Earnings per share — bagic and diluted

Dividend per share

Note

6(a)

6(b)

(a)

14

11(b)

11(b)

2021
Kshs

50,159,565
50,159,565
10,550,904

39,608,601

18,430,948
207,963
2,046,329
20,685,240
18,923,421

8,836,187

10,087,234

10,087,234

16.81

2020
Kshs

18,546,294
18,546,294
4,002,365

14,543,929

16,710,378
321,642
2,127,509
19,159,529
(4,615,600)

5,329,786

(9,945,386)

(9,945,386)

(16.58)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

.General Manager
Risper Chichaole

“" Head of Finance

Risper Chichole
CPAK M/NO: B120

Naote ’ 2021 2020
Kshs Kshs
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 86,031,801 87,268,989
Total Non-Current Assets 86,031,801 87,268,989
Current Assets .
Inventories 15 212,997 86,724
Trade and other receivables 16(a) 22,741,868 14,655,074
Bank and cash balances 17(a} 5,762,295 1,041,467
Total Current Assets 28,717,160 15,783,265
Total Assets 114,748,961 103,052,254
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves i
Ordinary share capital 18 12,000,000 12,000,000
Revaluation reserve 19 79,262,476 79,262,476
Retained earmnings (172,975,512) {1!%3,(]62,746)
Proposed dividends _
Capital and Reserves (81,713,036) (91,800,270)
Man-Current Liabilities
Shareholders loan advanced 1,431,286 1,431,286
TFC Loans Principle balance 21 59,769,468 64,193,108
Advance from TFC 2,500,000 2,500,000
Total Non-Current Liabilities 63,700,754 68,124,394
Currerit Liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 43,447,108 50,673,822
Accrued Loan Principal 23(b) 42 873,481 18,449,841
Accrued Loan interest 23(b) 46,440,654 37,604,467
Total Current Liabilities 132,761,243 126,728,130
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 114,748,961 103,052,254
The financial statements weré approved by the Board on U”? \ E"{'{\ 20 ehalf

@ai;‘man of the Board
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JFNE 2021

Ordinary share Revaluation Retained Total
capital reserve earnings
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At July 1, 2019 12,000,000 79,262,476 (173,117,360) (81,854,884)
Rewvaluation gain - 5 A ; :
Transfer of excess depreciation ) _
on revaluation
Deferred tax on excess E - :
depreciation
Capital/Development grants . ) _
received duning the year
Profit/{ Loss) for the year (9.945,386) (9,945,386)
At June 30, 2020 12,000,000 79,262,476 (183,062,746)  (91,800,270)
At July 1,2020 12,000,000  79.262,476  (183,062,746) (91,800,270 )
Revaluation gain - - # 2
Transfer of excess depreciation v | - )
on revaluation
Deferred tax on excess . . =
depreciation
Capital/Development grants . 3 ] |
received during the year
Profit/( Loss) for the year 10,087,234 10,087,234
At June 30, 2021 12,000,000 79,262,476 (172,975,512) (81,713,036 )
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020
Kshs Kshs
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from /(used in ) operations
23(a) 5,529,973  (4,359,983)
Interest received - -
Interest paid - -
Taxation paid - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 23(a) 5,529,973  (4,359,983)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 809,145 (44,800)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment # +
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 809,145 (44,800)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan from TFC 23(b) = 4,671,101
TFC Repayment of borrowings : -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities - 4,671,101
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 4,720,828 266,318
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 23(c) 1,041,467 775,149
Effects of foreign exchanges rate fluctuations H :
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
YEAR 23(c) 5,762,295 1,041,467
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE
PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

- Actual [ |'
; Original ; . Performance | % age "
Particulars Budget Adjustments | Final Budget Currlugzi;;able Differencs | Varignes Remar
. : 2020-
2020-2021 2020-2021 2019-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021 2021
Revenue Kshs “Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Sales 318,731,955 - 18,731,955 50,159,565 11427610 30% E
Other Income = - , - =
Total Revenues 38,731,955 - 38,731,955 50,159,565 11,427,610 30%
Cost of sales £.050,782 - 8.050,782 10,550,904 -2.500,122 -31% L
Gross Profit 30,681,173 30,681,173 39,608,661 8,927,488 29% F
EXPENSES
Administration Costs 21.225.669 - 21,225,669 18,430,948 2,794,721 | 3% F
i e 575,922 ; 575,922 207,963 167959 | 64% | F
Depreciation Costs 2,348,720 2,348,720 2,046,329 302,391 13% F
Total Operating 24,150,311 x 24,150,311 | 20,685,240 3,465,071 14% F
cxpenses
Operating - X 421 12392559 | 190%
Profit(Loss) 6,530,862 | 6,530,862 | 18,923, ! 392,5 a
| Finance Costs 5,150,384 - 5,150,384 8,836,187 -3,685,803 -72% U
| Profit{(Loss) before 1.380.478 2 1380478 | 10087234 | 8706756 | - 630%
taxation
Income tax expenses ) % Z 4 :
{credit)
:ii‘;:i;:ﬁ‘ X Loss) after 1,380,478 ; 1,380,478 | 10,087,234 8,706,756 | . 630% F

Key: U- Unfavorable
F- Favorable
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Explanatory notes:-

a)

b)

d)

e)

The hotel surpassed its revenue target by 30%. This being as a result of the boost received from
Covid-19 quarantine services offered by the hotel for a couple of months during the year. Even
though, the hotel’s performance has steadily been improving due to management’s concerted
efforts to re-position the hotel. However the dilapidated state of the hotel remains the greatest
impediment. The hotel's performance has been on a downward trend due to its poor state having

been built 40 years ago. If given a slight facelift, the hotel will easily bring back its lost glory. It
has immense potential given its very prime location.

Cost of sales had a negative variance of 31% with this being due to the relatively higher sales
recorded during the period as compared to what was budgeted.

Administration costs were below the budgeted figure i.e. a positive variance of 14% due to cost
control measures put in place by the hotel.

Selling and distribution costs were equally within the budgeted figure.

There was minimal capital expenditure in the period thus the favourable variance for depreciation.
This is a provision made in the books for depreciable assets. Notably a number of assets also

happen to be fully depreciated thus the reduction in depreciation. The hotel intends to revalue all
its assets in the near future.

Finance costs deviated from the budgeted figure by 72%. This was as a result of interest due on
the loan of Kshs.30M disbursed to the hotel in 2019 for settling staff redundancy costs after the
lapse of the one year moratorium in June 2020. The hotel had anticipated extension of the
moratorium by the lender but unfortunately that did not happen.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunset Hotel Limited was established and derives its authority and accountability from the Kenva
Companies Act (cap 486). It was established in 1976. It is 95.4% owned by the Government of
Kenya through Tourism Finance Corporation under the Ministry of Tourism and 4.6% by the
County Government of Kisumu and is domiciled in Kenya. TFC shareholding has since been
transferred to Kenya Development Corporation (KDC) effective 2™ July 2021 vial Legal Notice
No.113 pursuant to the Kenya Development Corporation Limited vesting order, 2021 published by
the Cabinet Secretary for National Planning. The hotel’s principal activity is provision of
accommodation and conference facilities.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement
of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in the process of applying the hotel’s accounting policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the hotel.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State

Corporations Act and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting policies
adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

%
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

a) Relevant new standards an

ended 30 June 2021

d amendments to published standards effective for the year

[ amendmentTnterpretation to
a standard

Effective date

Impact

IFRS 16- Leases

The amendmenis are effective
for annual periods heginning
an or after January 1, 2020
Carlier application is
permnitted.

IFRS 16 specifies how to recognize, measure, present and
disclose leases, The standard provides a single lessce
accounting madel, requiring the recognition of asseis and
liabilities for all leases, unless the lease term is | 2 months or
less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessor accounting
however remains largely unchanged from 1A5 17 and the
distinction between operating and finance leases 15 retained,

IFRS 7- Financial Instrument
Misclosures

The amendments are effective
Tor annual periods beginning
on ar afier lanuary 1, 2020.
Tarlicr application is
permitted.

1FRS 7 “Tinancial Instruments: Disclosures” requires
disclosure of information about the significance of financial
instruments 1o an entity, and the nature and extent of risks
arising from those financial instruments, both in qualitative
and quantitative terms. Specific disclosures are required in
relation to rransferred financial assets and a number of other
matlers.

-

IFRS 4- Insurance Contracts
(Superseded)

The amendments are effective
for annua! periods beginning
on of after January 1, 2020
Farlier application 1§
permitted.

IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” applies, with limied
cxceptions, 1o &ll insurance contracts {including reinsurance
contracis) that an entity issues and Lo reinsurance conmacts that
it holds. In light of the TASB's comprehensive project an
insurance contracts, the standard provides a temporary
exemption from the requirements of some other ITFRSS,
including the requitement 1o consider 1AS 8 "Accounling
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors™ when
selecting accounting policies for insurance cantracts

1AS 39-Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

The amendments are effective
figr annual periods beginning
an or after January 1, 2020.
Earlier application is
permined.

TAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” outlines the requirements for the recognition
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, and
some conkracts to buy or sell non-financial iterns. Financial
instruments are initially recognized when an entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are
classified into various categories depending upon the Type of
instrument, which then determines the subsequent
measurement of the instrument {typically amorfized cosL or
fair value). Special rules apply o embedded derivatives and
hedging instruments. J

The Directars have assessed the applicable standards and amendments. Based on their assessment of impact
of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a significant impact on the company's

financial statements.
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b) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in
the year ended 30 June 2021.

Amendm enulnter_pretnt'rtm toa
standard

Effective date

Impact

IAS 1 - Presemation of Finanéial
Swaements

Annual periods beginning on or
after lanuary 1, 2023, Earlier
application is permitted

IAS | "Presentation of Financial Statememts® sets out the
overall requirements for financial staements, including how
they should be structured, the minimum requirements for their
content and overriding concepts such as going concern, the
accrual basis of accounting and the currentnon-curment
distinction. The standard requires @ complee set of financial
slalements 1o comprise a statement of financial position, a
statement of prafit or loss and other comprehensive income, a
statement af changes in equity and a statement of cash flows,

R

T1AS 12 - Income Taxes

Annual reponting periods
heginning on or after January 1,
2023, Farly adoption is
permitted.

1AS 12, “Ilncome Taxes” implements 2  so-called
‘comprehensive balance sheet method of accouming for income
taxes which recognizes baoth the current tax consequences of
transactions and events and the future 1ax consequences of the
future récovery or settlement af the camying amount of an
entity's assets and Habilities. [ifferences between the carmying
amount and tax base of assers and labiliies, and carmied
forward tax losses and credis, are recognized, with limited
exceptions, as deferred tax liahilities or deferred tax assets, with
the later also being subject to a "probable profits’ test,

IAS 16 - Property; Plant and
Equipment

Annual periods beginning on or
afier January 1, 2022. Early
application is permitted.

IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” outhnes the
accounting treatment for most types of property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment is initially measured
atl its cost, subsequently measured ecither using 8 cost or
revaluation model, and depreciated so that s depreciable
amount is allocated on a systematic basis over ils

IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assels

-

Annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2022, Early
application is permitted.

1AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Asgets” outlines the accounting for provisions (liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount), together with contingent assets
{possible assets) and contingent liabilities (possible obligations
and present obligations that are not probable or not reliably
rmeasurable).

IFRS 1 - First-ime’ Adaption of
International Financial Repanling
Standards

Annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2022. Early
apphcation is permined.

IFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of Intermational Financial
Reparting Standards™ sets out the procedures that an entity must
follow when it adopts IFRS for the first time as the basis for
preparing its peneral purpose Nnancial statements. The TFRS
grants limited exemptions from the general requirement o
comply with each IFRS effective a1 the end of its first IFRS
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Amendment/Interpretation tos |  Effective date Impact
standard

reporing period

IFRS 3 - Business.Combinations | Annual periads beginning onor | IFRS 3 "Nusiness Combinations™ outlines the accounting when

afier January 1, 2022, Farly | an acquirer obtains control of a business (c.g an acquisition or
applicanon is permined 1f an merger]). Such business combinations are accoumicd for using
entity alsn applies all other the ‘acquisition method, which penerally requircs assets
updated references (published acquired and liabilities assumed to be measured a1 their fair
together with the updated values at the acquisition date.

Conceptual Tramewark) at the
same time ar earlier

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts The [ASH tentatively decided IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition,
to defer the effective date ol measurement, presentation  and  disclosure  of  insurance
IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of
to annual perinds beginningan | IFRS 17 i5 1o ensure thal an entity provides relevant

or after January 1, 2022, [The information that faithfully represents those contracts This
1ASD has also published information gives a basis for users of financial siements 10
‘Extension ol the Temporary assess the effect that insurance contracts have an the entity's
Exemption from Applying financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

ITRS 9 (Amendments 1o IFRS .
4Y 1o defer the fixed expiry ;
date of the amendment also 1o

annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023

The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their assessment of

the potential impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a significant impact on
thecompany's financial statements.

¢) Early adoption 'ui'standn_rds

The Hotel did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2020/2021.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial

statéments are set out below:

a) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents

10
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amounts receivable for services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.; .

i) Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognized in the year in which the hotel

delivers products/services ta the customer, the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

ii) Finance income comprises of interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in
securities, and it recognized in profit and loss on a time proportion basis using effective interest
rate method.

ii1) Other income is recognized as il accrues.

b) In-kind contributions

These are donations made to the hotel in the form of actual goods and/or services rather than in
money or cash terms. These donations may include vehicles, equipment or. personnel services.
Where the hotel includes such value in the statement of comprehensive income both as revenue
and as expense in equal opposite amounts; otherwise the contribution is not recotded.

Property Plant and Equipment i

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment:losses. Where re-measurement at re-valued amounts is desired, all itemsin an asset
category are re-valued through periodic valuations carried out by independent external valuers.

Increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to.other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of the
same asset are charped against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are charged to
profit or loss in the income statement. Land and Buildings are subsequently shown at market
value, based on valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent Depreciation for
Buildings.

All other praperty Plant and Equipment is stated at historical cost less Depreciation.

Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and are
recogmized in profit or loss in the income statement.

d) Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment

11
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Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress relates
mainly to the costs of ongoing but incomplete works on buildings and other civil works and
installations. ’
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a
straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual value
over its estimated useful life as follows:-
The annual rates in use are:

a) No depreciation is charged on the Leasehold land

b) Building - 2.5%
c) Property, Plant & Machinery -12.5%
d) Furniture, Fittings and Equipment -12.5%
e) Motor Vehicle - 25.0%

fi Computers -33.0%

Depreciation charge is recognized both in the vear of asset purchase and in the year of asset
disposal on pro-rata basis.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the
carrying amount of an asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount.

¢) Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software licenses, which are capitalized on the
basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are

amortized over the estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the year that they are
available for use, usually over three years.

f) Amortization and impairment of intangible assets
Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of computer
software of three years. '
All computer software is reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an
intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment

loss is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable
amount.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready

to use- are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
: 12
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g)

h)

1)

subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes n
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds 1s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Inventories
Inventory 1s valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The Cost is determined by
first in, first out (FIFQ) method. Inventories are held for sale as raw materials for kitchen
production supplies. Specific provisions are made for obsolete, slow moving and .defective
inventores.

Turnover ;

Turndver represents amounts received and receivable for services pmwded nel of government
taxes and levies.

Trade & other receivables '
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services perﬁ)rmed in the ordinary
course of  business. If collection 1s expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are a classified as current assets. I nol, they are
presented as non-current assets.
Receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value. An estimate is made for doubtful
-Receivabies based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Bad debts are wntten

- off when all reasonable steps to recover them have failed.

Taxation

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authonties. The tax rates and tax laws

" used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current
income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and
not in the statement of financial performance.

i3
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Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, al the
reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current
income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations

in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate. .

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect
of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences

can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are -recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized, except in re'-spect of deductible temporary dlff‘erence.s assuclated with investments
in controlled entities, associates and interests in JDII‘II vcntures deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary. d:fferermes will reverse in

the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against. which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it'is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
~that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in

the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.



SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the financial vear ending 30 June 2021

k)

h

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at
various Commercial Banks at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of these
financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash impresis and

advances to authorized officers which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the
financial vear.

Borrowing

Interest bearing loans and overdrafis are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of
issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance charges, including premiums
payable®of settlement or redemption are accounted for on accrual basis and are added to the
cariying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which

they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction of a project is capitalized as part of
the costof the project.

Trade and other payables :
Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing recognised initially at fair value and

. subsequently which is measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be

paid in future in respect of goods and services supplied , whether billed to the hotel or not, less
any payments made to the suppliers. ;

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
Liabilities if payment 1s due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Payables are
derecognised when extinguished.

n) Retirement benefit obligations

The company contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a
defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The company's
obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and
is currently at Kshs.1080.00 per employee per] gnﬂnth. A contrnibutory pension scheme is also in
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o) Provisipn for staff leave pay

place with employer/employee contributions set at 10% of the employees’ basic pay.

"

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave are recaognized as they accrue to the employees. A provision
15 made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

p) Exchange rate differences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign currencies
during the year/period are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Any
foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

q) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2020-2021 was approved by the National Assembly on 30™ July
2020. No subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget.
Any revisions if any are made in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate
authorities, '

The hotel’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance,
whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were
recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amauht;, prepared on a
comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the
financial statements are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes
adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under page 5 of these financial statements.

Comparatives

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes in the presentation in the
current year,

s) Subsequent events

Since the end of the year 2020/2021, no events have become known or have occurred

that may lead to significant changes to these financial statements.
. 16
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%

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and hiabilities, and the disclosure of contingent labilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including experience of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

i) Critical accounting estimaies and assumptions .
The company makes estimates and assurnptions concerning the future, The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment :
The company’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. The rates used are set out in (d) above.

Recoverability of trade and other receivables
Management has made Judgment in estimating the amounts that may not be

recovered based on experience and efforts expended in the attempt to recover the
outstanding balances.

11) Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
judgments in determining: ¢

s The classification of assets into current and non-current
= Whether assets are impaired

17
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Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimaie based on the information

available;, specifically provision for bad debts which was estimated at 1.23% of the total
budgeted revenue for the period.

Provisions are measured at the management's best esumate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is
material,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. (a) SALES /TURNOVER 2021 2020
' Kshs. Kshs.
Gross sales of Services 58.673.733 22,078,908
Less :taxes on gross sales 8,514,168 3,532,614
50,159,565 18,546,294
(Taxes :14%/16% VAT 2% CLT) .
Accommaodation 10,416,715 3,416,991
Food-Casuals 21,153918 7,381,764
Food-Residents B, 786,831 2,653,121
Drinks 6,858,748 2,908,466
Tobacca 28,428 19,559
Swimming, 1,400,629 1,006,582
Laundry 39,079 5,147
Other Income 1,475,217 1,150,664
Total 50,159,565 18,546,294
(b)Cost of sales ’
Food 71.877,897 2,761,372
Beverage 2,648 875 1,225,428
Tohacco 24,132 15,565
Total 10,550,904 4,002,365
{a) ADMINISTRATION COSTS

Staff costs note( 7b) 5,873,547 8,225 650
Durectors & Secretarial emoluments 800,888 595 265
Electricity and water 4,468,452 1,927,310
Transportation, travelling and subsistence 85,325 116,557
Printing, stationary and photocopy 586,389 176,046
Insurance costs 4,520 4520
Bank charges and commissions 59,545 75,7117
Office and general supplies and services 32,807 41,703
Auditors remunerations 300,000 300,000
Legal & Consultancy fees 150,000 5,000
Repairs and maintenance 1,788,595 2,504,229
Provision for Bad and doubtful debts 477,294 507,288
Other Operating Costs . 3,803,586 2,231,093
Total 18,430,948 16,710,378
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(B)STAFF COSTS

2021 2020
Kshs. Kshs.
Salaries and allowances of permanent employees 1,394,640 4,214,184
Wages af temporary employees 3,330,486 910,794
Compulsory national social security schemes 191,145 134,092
Terminal dues/Pension Contributions 126,792 967,597
lLeave Pay and gratuity provisions T
Staff travel and other related expenses 830,484 - | 998,983
Taotal 5.873,547 8,225,650
The average number of employees:
Permanent employees- Management I 1
Permanent employees- Unionisable nil nil
Temporary and contract employees 15 10
Total 16 11
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Advertising, marketing and promotional 2 9
Sales commission - -
Sales discounts and rebates ™ T
Other selling and distribution costs 207,963 321,642
Total 207,963 321,642
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
. The aperating profit /(loss) is arrived at after
charging /{crediting):
Staff cost (note7(b) 5,873,547 8,225,650
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,046,333 2,127,509
Provision for bad doubtful debts 477,294 507,288
Directors emoluments -Fees 560,000 540,000
‘Bnenses 140,888 55,265
Secretarial Fees 100,000 -
Auditors remuneration- current year fees 300,000 300,000
Interest on loan 8,836,187 5,329,786
Land rent & rates 334,032 1,484,791
Tatal 18,668,281 18,570,289
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10. FINANCE COSTS
Exchange losses on short term bank depaosits

Exchange losses on cash and bank balances

Interest expenses on loans
Interest expenses on bank overdrafis
TOTAL

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES / (CREDIT)

{a Current taxation
Current taxation based on the adjusted profit
Current tax :prior year under / { over jprovision
Current year deferred tax charge
Prior year under - provision for deferred tax
TOTAL

(b) Reconciliation of tax expenses/ (credit) to the
Expected tax based on profit

Frofit before taxation
Allowable B/forward Losses
Tax at applicable tax rate of 30%

" Prior year under—p:mvisian
Tax effects.of expenses not deductible for 1ax
Tax effect of income not taxable
Tax effects of excess n':apita'l allowances over
Deferred tax prior year over - provision
Total

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2021
Kshs.

8,836,187

8,836,187

10,087,234
(93,296,653)

2020
Kshs.

5,329,786

5,329,786

(9,945 386)

The e.amings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/( loss) after tax of Kshs.10,087,234 (2020:
Kshs. -9,945,386) by the average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 600,000 (2020:
600.000). There were not dilutive or potentially dilutive ordinary share as at the reporting date.
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13. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Proposed dividends are accounted for as a separate component of equity until they have been ratified
and declared at the relevant Annual General Meeting (AGM). No interim dividend was declared

and/or paid during the year neither is it expected that any dividends will be declared because of the
recurrent loses,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2021 FROFPERTY FURNITURE
LEASEHOL | BUILDING WORK IN PLANT & MOTOR TOTAL
0 LAND & VEHICLE
PROGRESS | EQUIPMENT FITTING o
COST OR
VALUATION Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Ksh
5
As at 01-07-2020 | 15,000,000 75,000,000 26,911,576 12,021,529 15,969,234 295,000 145,197,339
Additions 7 183,062 626,083 - 509,145
As at 30-06-2021 | 15,000,000 75,000,000 26,911,576 12,204,591 16,595,317 295,000 146,006,484
DEPRECIATION .
i
it o i 3 30,000,000 ; 11,904,821 | 15728,529 | 295000 | 57,928,350
Charge for the
year - 1,875,000 32,775 _ 138,558 - 2,046,333
As at 30-06-2021 - 31,875,000 - 11,937,596 15,867,087 295,000 59,974,683
NET BOOK
VALUE
As at 30-6-2020 15,000,000 45,000,000 - 26,211,576 116,708 240,705 87.268.989
As at 30-6-2021 | 15,000,000 | 43,125,000{ 26,911,576 266,995 728,230 - 86,031,801

Wark in progress relates to building renovation/extensions works for roof top bar and restaurant

which are yet to be completed or commissioned.

Property, plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depremated

f Cost or Mormal annual
i valuation Depreciation charge
Plant & machinery 11,819,056 1,477,382
Motor vehicle 295.000 73,750
Office equipment, furniture & equipment 15,398,321 1,924,790
27.512,377 3,475,922
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

2020 PROFPERTY FURMITURE
I EASEIOL BLIL.DI™NG WORK TN PLANT & MOTOR TOTAL
AN & YEHICLE
PROGRESS EQUIPMENT FITTING
COST OR ;
VALUATION Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 01-07-2019 15,000,000 75,000,000 26,911,576 11,976,729 15,969,234 295,000 145,152,540
Additions - 44,800 -
As at 30-06-2020 | 15,000,000 75,000,000, 26,911,576 12,021,529 15,969,234 295,000 145,197,339
DEPRECIATIO
N
As at 01.07.2019 28,125,000) - 11,815,132 15,565,709 295,000 55,800,841
Charge for
the year 2 1,875,000 89,689 162,820 2,127,509
As at 30-06-2020 - 30,000,000 - 11,904,821 15,728,529 29‘5,I}i]ﬂ 57,928,350
NET
BOOK
VALUE
As at 30-6-2019 15,000,000 46,875,000 26,911,576 161,597 403,525 89,351,698
As at 30-6-2020 15,000,000 dSTﬂﬂﬂ,ﬂUB‘ 26,911,576 116,708 240,705 87,268,989
Work in progress relates to building renovation/extensions works for roof top bar and restaurant
which are yet to be completed or commissioned.
Property, plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:
Cost or Normal annual
valuation Depreciation charge
| Plant & machinery 11,517,806 1,439,725
Motor vehicle 295,000 73,750 |
Office equipment, furniture & equipment 15,171,950 1,896,494
26,984,756 3,409,969
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15.

INVENTORIES
Food stare

Bar stock & Tobacco
TOTAL

16 (a) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables (note b )
Deposits and prepayments
VAT recoverable
Staff receivables

Grross trade and other receivables

Provisions for Bad and doubtful receivables)

Met trade and other receivables

(b) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Gross trade receivables

Other : Provisions for Bad and doubtful
receivables)

Met trade and other receivables

At June 30, the ageing analysis of the gross
trade receivables was as follows

Less than 30days

Between 30 and 60days

Between 61 and 90 days
Between 91 and 120 days
Owver 120 days

25

2021

Kshs.
B8 842

124,155
212,997

25,763,216
546,109

26,309,325
(3,567,457)

22,741,868

25,763,216
(3,567,457)

22,195,759

2,871,724
B5E 0BG

1,253,245

20,780,161
25,763,216

2020

Kshs.
33,918

52,806
86,724

17,366,141
379,096

17,745,237
(3,090,163)

14,655,074

17,366,141
(3,090,163)

14,275,978

2,703,765

311,983

1,435,039
12,915,354

17,366,141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17 (ay BANK AND CASH BALANCES

Cash at bank
{ash at hand

(b) DETAILED ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at Hand:
Peny cash
Mpesa

Credit Cards

Cash at Bank{Current Accounts)
Mational bank-A/c No.01020023525100
KCB- Afc No. 1108232736

The bulk of the cash was held at Mational bank
the main banker

18. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
Authonized , issued and fully paid
572,500 Ordinary Shares (@ Kshs.20/= ( TFC)

27500 Ordinary Shares (@ Kshs 20/=
( Kisumu County)

19. REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment.

2021
Kshs.

5.679.805
82,450
5,762,295

33,840
42,150

6,500
82,490

5,544,703

135,102
5,679,805

2021
Kshs.

11,450,000

550,000
12,000,000

2020
Kshs.

1.007.490
33,977
1,041,467

17,377
13,100
3,500

33,977

901,399
106,091
1,007,490

2020
Kshs.

11,450,000

550,000

12,000,000

As indicated in the Statement of Changes in Equity, this is stated after transfer of excess

depreciation to retained earnings.

1) These reserves shown in the Statement of chanﬁges in Equity arose due to valuation of the
2
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hotels building and land in the year 2004.

1) Land and building were initially taken at a value of Kshs. 178,013 and 10,559,511

respectively. However on revaluation, the values came to Kshs, 75,000,000 for Building and

15,000,000 for leasehold land.

i11) This therefore resulted in reserves of Kshs. 64,440,489 for Building and 14,821,987 for

leasehold land respectively. A total of Kshs. 79,262.,476.

20. RETAINED EARNINGS

21.

The retained eamings represent amounts available for distribution to the hotel’s shareholders.

Undistributed retained earnings if any are utilized to finance the hotel’s activities. However, the

hotel has retained losses as at date.

BORROWINGS

Balance at'beginning of the year

External borrowings during the year

Domestic borrowings during the vear

Repayments of external borrowings during the year
Repayments of domestics borrowings during ithe vear
Balance at end of the year '

Less: Amounts due within one year (current portion)
Amounts due after one year (non-current portion)
Accrued Loan Principal({current portion)

Accrued Loan Interest(current portian)

Total loan and Accrued Interest. '

2021
Kshs
64,193,108

4,423,640
59,769,468

(4.423,640)
55,345,828
42,873,481
46,440,654

144,659,963

2020
Kshs
62,412,207

4,671,101

2,890,200
64,193,108

(2,890,200)
61,302,908
38,449,841
37,604,470

137,357,219

The above borrowing is from TFC, one of the shareholders at an interest rate of 11%, with the

respective loans being as follows:

Particulars Loan 1 Loan 2 Loan 3 loan 4 Loan 5 Loan & Loan 7 TOTAL
Huiince 14,092,760 | 10004022 | 271475 | 1982732 | 3171018 | 30,000,000 4,671,101 .
BiF - 092, 004, . 982, A7 RIS LRl 64,193, 108
Additions )

Repayment : (271,475) (2,238,432) | (1,913,733 | (4.423,640)
Totals 14,092,760 | 10,004,022 - 1,982,732 432,586 | 28,086,267 4670101 | 59769468
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

I T Kshs

2o

2020
Kshs

]_Trade Credilors

10,386,569 | 11,889,128

Value Added Tax 12,740,358 12,709,065
Service Charge - -
CLT 83,299 69712
Deposits Payable 670,928 670,928
Payroll Control '
B 259,568 207,941
[PAYE 15,706,356 | 17,334,633
Staff Insurance Deductions - -
N.S.SF 35,742 2,335,820 |
N.H.L.F 11,900 9,050
L,Tnion dues - 173,933
Pension 2153 ]2—1_ 84,528
Sunsel Sacco - -
Accrued Expr:nses-ﬁudit Fees 900,000 3,?32,?33?1
~— -Directors fees 723,800 :
~ -Terminal Dues 300,000 B
-Linen & Uniforms 146,372 2,070,172 3,732,738 |
Withholding Tax 1,461,084 1,456,346
43,447,108 50,673,822

Included in Trade Creditors above 15 Kshs.4,7

Kenya National Audit Office.

23. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF

(a) Reconciliation of operating profi
generated from/ (used in) operations

Operating profit/(loss)
Depreciation
Interest Charged

36,000 being outstanding audii_

CASHFLOWS
t/ (loss) to cash

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital

changes

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash penerated from/(used in) operations

28

10,087,234
2,046,333
8,836,187

20,969,754

(126,273)
(8,086,794)
(7.226,714)

5,529,973

fee owed 1o _lhe

(9,945,386)
2.127,509
5,329.786

(2,488,091)
100,747
1,398,724
(3,371,363)

(4,359,983)
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(b) Analysis of changes in loans

o

(c)

Balance at beginning of the year

Receipts during the year

Repayments during the year

Repayments of previous year’s accrued interest
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses

Accrued interest

Accrued Principal

Balance at end of the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank
Cash in hand
Balance at end of the year

24. PROVISIONS

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additional provision for the year

Leave paid out or utilized during the year
Balance at the end of the year '

Related party transactions

2021
Kshs

64,193,108
(4,423,640)
46,440,654

42 873.481
149,083,603

5,679,805
82,490
5,762,295

2021

Kshs
1.211.112

1,211,112

2020
Kshs

62,412,207
4,671,101
(2,890,200)

37,604,470
38,449,841
140,247,419

1,007,490
33,977
1,041,467

2020
Kshs
1,211,112

1311 112

The hotel has two shareholders namely Tourism Finance Corporation (TFC) and Kisumu
County Government. Tourism Finance corporation owns 95% of Sunset Hotel Limited
shareholding while Kisumu County owns 5%.

Sales and Purchases

During the year, the hotel provided accommodation, conference and catering services to
the Kisumu County Government valued at Kshs. 10M while Tourism Finance
Corporation did not hold any business with the hotel in the financial year.

Sunset Hotel incurred Land rent & rates amounting to Kshs. 334,029 for land leased to
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the hotel for 99 Years by Kisumu County Government; this was fully paid by

-

Transactions with related parties

2021
Kshs
a) Loans received from the shareholders
Loans from TFC Nil
Loans from Kisumu County Government Nil
Total 1 il
b) Key management compensation
Directors’ emoluments 700,888
Compensation to key management 1,394,640
Total 2,195,528
25, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2021
Kshs
NSSF Penalties 4531,809 °
Notice of Distress for outstanding tax arrears(KRA) 28,980,240
Total 33,512,049

Explanatory notes:

At close of previous year, the hotel had NSSF arrears totaling 10 Khs.2,244,940. The hotel was
able to settle the amount during the financial year under review. However, this has since
attracted a penalty of Kshs.4,531 ,809 as demanded by NSSF. Negotiations to have the penalty

the hotel.

2020
Kshs

4,671,101
Nil
4,671,101

595,265
3,221,086

3,816,351

2020
Kshs

31,344,951
31,344,951

waived if not reduced are ongoing and the hotel remains hopeful for a positive outcome.

Kenya Revenue Authority previously issued a demand notice for outstanding principal tax
arrears of Kshs. 31,344,951, The management appealed to the shareholders to intervene on
behalf of the hotel to assist in payment of the principal amount with the hope that the interests
will be waived. Meanwhile, the hotel has agreed on a payment plan for the principal amount
of Kshs.21,514,294 with KRA; to pay the amounts in instalments until such a time when cash
flows will improve enough to offset the entire amount. The hotel is currently honoring the

agreement and is up to date with the current taxes.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

a)

- Bank balances

The enltil}f"s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and hiquidity
nsks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history. :

The company’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable 10
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemmal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by
the company’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
gntity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral
abtained is made up as follows:

Fully ;
Total Performing Past due Impaired
30-Jun-21 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Trade receivables 25,763,216 4,983,055 17212704 3,567,457

Due from related parties .

5,762,295 5,762,295

atel 31,525,511 10,745350 17,212,704 3,567,457
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The amount that best represents the company’s maximum exposure o credit risk as at 30 June
2019 15 as shown below:

Taotal i-'u.l ly Past due Impaired
Performing
30-Jun-20  Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Trade receivables 17.366.141 1,196,015 11,079,963 3.090.163

Due from related parties 2 - 5

Bank balances 1,046,012 1,046,012

Total 18,412,153 4,242,027 11,079,963 3,090,163

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognized in the financial statements is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The entity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from county
governments.

The board of directors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down
_parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

b) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity’s directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual matunities at ‘the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Less Between Over 3
] g 3 months months Fatal
maonth
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2021:
Trade payables 783,748 136,894 9,447,926 10,368,568
Current portion ; - 89314,134 89,314,134
borrowings
Provisions - - 1,043,227 5,183,556
Deferred income - . - .
Employee benefit
oblipation £ gloe 300,000 Aeld
Total 893,183 150,210 87,015,859 105,187,390
At 30 June 2020:
Trade payables 423 232 150,210 13,510,739 14,083,181
Current portion
borrowings - 67,834325 67,834,325
Provisions = - 5,183,556 5,183,556
Deferred income = - - - -
Employeesbenefit 470.951 : 337,029 807,980
obligation. A
Total 893,183 150,210 86,865,649 87,909,042

Market risk
The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income or the value of its holdin g of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 15 to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
managémgnt policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day to day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the nisk.
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)

Foreign exchange risk

The company does not undertake any major transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
Therefore, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations are mimimal, Any Foreign currency
transactions during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at Rates ruling at the
transaction date. The resulting differences from conversion and Translation are dealt with
in the Profit and Loss Statement in the year in which they arise.

1

Interest rate risk

This is the risk that the entity’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of
changes in interest rate levels. The company’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.
This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure
arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company s deposits.

To mitigate this risk, the hotel tries to bank and only deal with banks/institutions that are
well established and offer favarable interest rates.

Fair Value of financial assets and liahilities

a)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data
obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the entity's market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

. Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. This level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on
exchanges.

. Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

. Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments
with significant unobservable components. This hierarchy requires the use of
observable market data when available. The entiry considers relevant and observable
market prices in its valuations where possible.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

b} Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Disclosures of fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value have not been
made because the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

d) Capital Risk Management

The-objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

Particulars D 2020-2021 2019-2020
. Kshs Kshs
Revaluation reserve 79.262.476 79.262.476
Retained earnings B -172,975,512 -183.062.746
Capital reserve - 12,000,000 12,000,000
Total funds -81,713,036 -91,800,270
Total borrowings 59,769,468 64,193,108
L.ess: cash and bank balances -5,762,295 -1,041.467
Nel.debﬂ{excess cash and cash 54,007,173 63.151.641
equivalents) -
Gearing 166% 168%

27. CURRENCY ;
The financial statement is presented in Kenya shillings. (Kshs.)

28. EVENTS AFTER CLOSING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporting period

29. INCORPORATION

The hotel is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act and is domiciled in
Kenya.
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2.

| position reflects property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.89.351,698 as at 30 June 2020.

Property, Plant and Equipment
i. Fully Depreciated Assets

It was observed that the statement of financial

However, the Hotel had not depreciated assets
whose original cost amounted to Kshs.26,984,756

since they had nil book values. These assets were
still in use but had not been revalued to reflect
current market value and no funds had been set
aside tb replace the fully depreciated assets. |
Further, although the Hotel maintains a fixed assets “
register, the assets cards are not properly numbered
and not labelled in the hotels name. Physical
verification revealed that all the fixed assets were
not coded or assigned distinct identification tags as
required. The assets are also not insured and
therefore exposed to loss in case of fire or other
insurable risks. Consequently, the validity and
correctness of the fixed asset register could not be
confirmed. . i

The fixed asset cards have since been
numbered and labeled accordingly by
indicating the name of the entity on each
card. The management will also ensure
that all the assets are physically coded as
required. However, due to financial
constraints the hotel is still in the process
of having revaluation done .It's expected
that the revaluation will be conducted
sooner than later.

As nightfully observed, the hotel does not
have any general insurance cover and is
therefore generally exposed. This has
been as a result of the hotel’s poor cash
flow over the years.

However, the management will try
everything possible to at least have some
insurance cover so as to reduce the risk.

Maintenance
/Accountant/ |
General
Manager

Partly
resolved

30" June
2022

NP

"No. 16 which requires that the transfers be made to

ii) Revaluation Reserve

As observed in previous vears, revaluation reserve
balance of Kshs.79, 262,476 reflected in the
financial statements has remained constant since
the assets were last valued in 2004, This
contravenes International Accounting Standard

The management is in the process of not
only having the hotel assets revalued but
also refurbishing the entire hotel
altogether. It has engaged the
shareholders to that effect and it's hoped
that the exercise will be carried out soon.

—

General
Manager

On-going

30™ June
2022

37



SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED

Annual
For the

Reports and Financial Statements
financial vear ending 30 June 2021

the revenue reserves on an annual basis as the
assets are depreciated. Further, although the
standard requires that fixed assets be revalued
periodically the last revaluation of the Hotel's
assets was done 16 years ago. Consequently, the
accuracy of property, plant and equipment balance
of Kshs. 87,268,989 as at 30 June 2020 cannot be

| confirmed.

The necessary adjustments and transfers
will therefore be made once the current
revaluation/refurbishment is done. This
should hopefully take place by end of the
current financial yvear.

iii) Capital Work in Progress

It was observed that the statement of financial

| position-reflects property, plant and equipment

figure of Kshs.87,268,989 as at 30 June 2020 and
included in this amount was work in progress of
'Kshs.26,911,576 on account of renovation,
extension and refurbishment of the Hotel in regard
to a contract entered into with a construction firm
in July 2004. This resulted to cost overruns of
Kshs.B,437,064 (46% increase) that had not been
supported with necessary approvals and
documentation. Further, no completion certificate
for the renovations completed in June 2011 was
availed for audit. Consequently, the accuracy of

| property, plant and equipment balance of

Kshs.B7.268,989 as at 30 June 2020 could not be
confirmed.

The management is pursuing issue with a
view of having the matter concluded
between the parties and finalized once
and for all.

General
Manager

On-going

30" June
2022

Cash and Cash equivalents
It was noted that the statement of financial position
jeflected bank and cash balances figure of

true three chegues as shown below which
| were issued to the indicated payees had

Accountant/
(General

Dane

| nfa
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| respecl] vely. These payables have been outstanding

since the year 2012. Consequently, the continued
operation of the company is uncertain and the
company risks payment of voidable penalties and
interest charges.

taken a toll on its cash flows thus making
the hotel to lag behind on some of the
current obligations. However, after the
redundancy exercise, the hotel is now up
to date with all the statutory deductions
and is currently settling the old arrears.
The hotel has since paid the NSSF

arrears of Kshs.2,335,820. However, the

said payables had been outstanding from
2017 and not 2012 as indicated.

losses increased from Kshs.173,1 17,360 as at 30
June 2019 to Kshs. 183,062,746 as at 30 June 2020
occasioned by the loss realized in the year of
Kshs.9,945386. In addition, the current l1abilities
of Kshs. 126,728,130 as at 30 June 2020 exceeded

time. However, the management together
with the board of directors and
shareholders are cognizant of the fact and
are working on turn around strategies for
the hotel. For instance the hotel declared

{ 7. Audit Fee

_ It was observed that included in the financial As rightfully observed, the hotel has Accountant/ | On-going | 30" June
position is trade and other payables of indeed not paid audit fees for a long General 2022
Kshs.50,673,822. Included in this amount is trade period of time due to the financial Manager
creditors of Kshs. 11,889,128 as indicated in note 22 | constraints it has been facing over time.
to the financial statements which in turn includes However, with the restructuring
outstanding audit fee of Kshs.4,736,000 which has measures being put in place, the hotel .
accrued for the last 16 years and has not been paid | undertakes to start paying the current
as at 30 June 2020 as per the Public Audit Act audit fee as it seeks means of settling the
2015. As a result, the hotel is in breach of the law. long outstanding arrears is sort.

8. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern _
It was observed that the company’s accumulated It's true the hotel has been ﬂmn_.nm serious | General On-going | 30" June
financial challenges over a period of Manager 2022

current assets of Kshs.15,783,265 by
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—

Kshs.110,944,865 an indicator that the is facing
financial challenges. Therefore, the financial

_ statements have been prepared on a going concern
; basis on the assumption that the company will
continue to receive support from the shareholders
and its creditors. Consequently, in the absence of
support from government and creditors, the ability
of the company to continue as a-going concern is
doubtful.

its entire staff redundant in May 2019,
This has since enabled the hotel to cut on
its costs/reduce the losses given that a
significant part of the costs/losses were
staff related. :

Plans to refurbish the hotel are underway
and it's expecied that with this, the hotel
will turn around its fortunes.

Ap.General Manager
Dm_m::fww_/ o) 282 \

Chairmhan of the Board
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